
 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 

 

March 15, 2022 – 5:00 PM 

Effingham County Administrative Complex 

804 South Laurel Street, Springfield GA 31329 

 

The Georgia Conflict of Interest in Zoning Action Statue (O.C.G.A. §§ 36-67A-1 et seq.) requires disclosure of certain 
campaign contributions made by applicants for rezoning actions and by opponents of rezoning application.  A rezoning 
applicant or opponent of a rezoning application must disclose contributions or gifts which in aggregate total $250.00 or 
more if made within the last two years to a current member of Effingham County Planning Board, Board of Commissioners, 
or other Effingham County official who will consider the application.  The campaign contribution disclosure requirement 
applies to an opponent of a rezoning application who publishes his or her opposition by appearance before the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners or by any other oral or written communication to a member or members of the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners.  Disclosure must be reported to the Board of Commissioners by applicants within ten 
(10) days after the rezoning application is filed and by opponents at least five (5) days prior to the first hearing by the 
Planning Board.  Any person knowing failing to comply with these requirements shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 
 
“Individuals with disabilities who require special needs to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities should contact the County Clerk at 912-754-2123 
promptly to afford the County time to create reasonable accommodations for those persons.” 

**PLEASE TURN OFF YOUR CELL PHONE 
 

Agenda 

Virtual Meeting Information: 

Zoom link: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88387585556?pwd=bDhncFEvSlMwdmN2VW9NWUR5OHduQT09 

 

Phone Number: 1-929-436-2866 

Meeting ID: 883 8758 5556 

Access Code: 645218 
 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Invocation 

IV. Pledge to the American Flag 

V. Agenda Approval - Consideration of a resolution to approve the agenda 

VI. Minutes - Consideration to approve the March 1, 2022 regular Board of Commissioners 
meeting minutes 

VII. Public Comments - Public comment shall pertain to the agenda items only. Should you 
wish to address the Board about an item, clearly state your full name prior to commencing 
to speak. 

VIII. Correspondence - Documents from this meeting are located in the Clerk's Office and on the 
Board of Commissioner's website 

 

1



 

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – March 15, 2022 

IX. Consent Agenda 

1. [2022-145 Form] 

Consideration to approve to ratify the update of the ACCG Insurance Program Contact 
Form  

2. [2022-146 Calendar]  

Consideration to approve the Budget Calendar for fiscal year 2022-2023 

X. Old Business 

1. [2022-086 Crossing Closure] Eric Larson 

Consideration to approve a railroad crossing closure at Dewitt Road (this item was 
postponed from the 02/15/2022 meeting) 

2. [2022-070 Agreement/Resolution] Tim Callanan 

Consideration to approve to amend the Intergovernmental Agreement and a Resolution 
of Support (022-010) between Effingham County and the Effingham County Hospital 
Authority  

XI. New Business 

1. [2022-147 Contract] Alison Bruton  

Consideration to approve Amendment #4 to the Contract for Roadside Mowing 
Services with the McGraley Company, LLC 

2. [2022-148 Resolution] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to Approve Resolution# 022-015 for surplus of various items 

3. [2022-149 Agreement] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve ratification of an Agreement with Gas South for natural gas 
services for multiple County buildings 

4. [2022-150 Quote] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve Quote #000021 for an updated software program for the 
Recreation department from RecDesk 

5. [2022-151 Quote] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve a Quote from Toast, Inc. for the software and equipment to 
allow for the acceptance of credit card payments at concession stands 

6. [2022-152 Agreement] Teresa Concannon 

Consideration to approve a Location Agreement for Randy Smoak to hold a “Night of 
Praise” event on Sunday, July 3, 2022, at the Effingham County Courthouse located at 
700 N. Pine St., in Springfield. Map# S101 Parcel# 21 

7. [2022-153 Grant Application] Mark Barnes 

Consideration to approve submittal of a Grant Application with the Georgia Emergency 
Management  and Homeland Security Agency for cameras for the Sheriff's Office 

 

 

2



 

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – March 15, 2022 

8. [2022-154  Grant Application] Mark Barnes 

Consideration to approve the submittal of a Grant Application to the American Kennel 
Club Companion Animal Recovery Corporation (AKC Reunite) Canine Support and 
Relief Fund related to pet disaster relief units for the Animal Shelter 

9. [2022-155 Resolution] Mark Barnes 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-016 to amend the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year 
Budget  

10. [2022-156 Resolution] Tim Callanan 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-017 to adopt increased freeport exemption 
pursuant to the O.C.G.A. Section 48-5-48.2  

11. [2022-157 Agreement] Stephanie Johnson 

Consideration to approve the Fiscal Agent Designation and Acceptance Agreement for 
Family Connection  

12. [2022-158 Resolution/Appointment] Stephanie Johnson 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-018 to reappoint Lisa Mock-Hurst to the 
Tax Assessor Board representing the First District  

XII. Reports from Commissioners & Administrative Staff 

1. County Engineer's report on Capital project status. 

XIII. Executive Session - Discussion of Personnel, Property and Pending Litigation 

XIV. Executive Session Minutes - No executive session was held, no minutes to be approved. 

XV. Adjournment 

3



Staff Report 

 
Subject: ACCG Insurance Program Contact Form Update 

Author: Sarah Mausolf, Director 

Department: Human Resources and Risk Management 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: Approval of Updated Contact Form for ACCG Insurance Program 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the updated Contact 

Form for the ACCG Insurance Program. 

 

Executive Summary/Background: Due to change in personnel, an update for the 

ACCG Insurance Program is necessary.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of the updated contact forms. 

2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

 

Other Alternatives: 2 

 

Department Review: County Clerk 

 

Funding Source: NA 

 

Attachments: 

 2022 IRMA Contact Form  

 

 

 

 

4

Item IX. 1.



5

Item IX. 1.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:    FY 2023 Budget Calendar  

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 3/15/2022  

Item Description: Consideration to approve Effingham County’s FY 2023 budget 
calendar. 

 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting approval of the FY 2023 budget calendar 

 

Executive Summary: 

The County currently uses specific guidelines to meet state requirement with regard to 

producing the annual budget, and as such seeks to ensure all departments are aware of 

the requirements and timeline. The calendar supports the development of the FY 2023 

(July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023) fiscal year budget. 

 
Background: 

1. The adoption of this calendar will provide each participant a deadline for submission 

of their pertinent budget items. 

2. This will provide an overall defined structure and timeline. 

3. The budget must be finalized before the new fiscal year begins to ensure 

compliance with state law and to maintain a balanced budget. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the FY 2023 budget calendar 
2. Do not approve the FY 2023 budget calendar  
3. Provide staff with direction 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approval of the FY 2023 budget 
calendar 

  

 

 

Other Alternatives: 

N/A  

 

Department Review: (list departments) 

Finance 

6

Item IX. 2.



 

Funding Source: 

No funding needed 

 

Attachments: 

1. FY 2023 budget calendar 
 

 

 

 

7

Item IX. 2.



Action/Item/Description Last year, for comparison FY 2023 Budget Calendar
Days To 
Complete

Total 
Days

Department Heads budget kick‐off instructional email Wednesday, January 27, 2021 Monday, February 7, 2022 0 1

Deadline for Personnel Requests Friday, February 5, 2021 Tuesday, February 15, 2022 8 8

Deadline for Prelim Budget Sheets To Be Completed Friday, February 12, 2021 Monday, February 21, 2022 6 14

Meeting of Budget Staff Monday, February 22, 2021 Wednesday, March 2, 2022 9 23

Meetings with Budget Committee & Department Heads Begins Wednesday, February 24, 2021 Friday, March 4, 2022 2
Meetings with Budget Committee & Department Heads Ends Thursday, March 18, 2021 Friday, March 25, 2022 21 46

Finance Department Prepares Preliminary Budget ‐ Start Monday, March 22, 2021 Thursday, March 31, 2022 6
Finance Department Finalizes Preliminary Budget ‐ End Monday, April 5, 2021 Thursday, April 14, 2022 14 66

Budget Workshop for Discussion potential meeting with Department ‐ Start Wednesday, April 7, 2021 Monday, April 18, 2022 4
Budget Workshop for Discussion potential meeting with Department ‐ End Friday, April 16, 2021 Friday, April 22, 2022 4 74
 
Draft Budget Due to County Clerk Thursday, April 22, 2021 Wednesday, April 27, 2022 5 79

Present Draft Budget to Board of Commissioners at Regular Meeting Tuesday, May 4, 2021 Tuesday, May 3, 2022 6 85

Present Updated Final Budget to Board of Commissioners 1st Reading Tuesday, May 18, 2021 Tuesday, May 17, 2022 14 99

Present Updated Final Budget to Board of Commissioners 2nd Reading ‐ Budget Adoption Tuesday, June 1, 2021 Tuesday, June 7, 2022 21 120

FY 2023 (07/01/2022 ‐ 6/30/2023)

Budget Calendar FY 2023

8

Item IX. 2.



Staff Report 

 

Subject: DeWitt Road Railroad crossing closure  

Author:  Eric Larson, Asst. County Manager 

Department:  Development Services 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: Approve a railroad crossing closure at DeWitt Road. 

 

Summary Recommendation:  

The County desires to create a new railroad crossing of the Norfolk Southern railroad to promote 

growth in the County.  NSRR requires the commitment of the community to close an existing 

crossing per requirements of the Federal Railway Administration.  This program aims to identify 

crossing locations that are considered to provide redundant access by vehicles where the 

crossing has lower traffic volumes.   DeWitt Road crossing is skewed and lacks active warning 

systems.  Alternative access via Shawnee Road is less than ½ mile away and has active warning 

devices.  Therefore, the railroad crossing at DeWitt Road is recommended for consideration for 

closure. 

 

Staff review following the February 15, 2022 public meeting concluded the emergency route 

to/from the nearest medical facility increased by a maximum of 1.3 miles.  The Fire Chief and 

EMS Director reviewed the travel time and deemed it acceptable given the proposed 

improvements in the area.  Improvements to Old Dixie Highway are currently being bid for 

construction.  Work orders for patching, new chip seal surface, and spot improvements to DeWitt 

Road have been issued to Public Works.   

 

Upon approval of the railroad crossing closure, the following work will be contracted a completed 

by the Effingham County Industrial Authority: 

 

1) Signage and Barriers 
2) Grading, Earthworks, Erosion Control 
3) Paving – End treatment near crossing 

a. Changes to drainage and earth works inside NS ROW by NS 
4) Miscellaneous – Mobilization / Demobilization, Clean-up, etc. 
5) DeWitt Road Improvements via Public Works Work Order ($40,000 commitment from 

ECIDA) 
a. 2,500 feet of chip seal resurfacing – 20 feet wide minimum 
b. 2,500 feet of clearing ROW – 25 feet wide (Driveway improvements as needed) 
c. Old Dixie Highway and DeWitt Intersection Improvements – Increase radii to 50ft 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 The County desired to consider closing the crossing on DeWitt Road and publicly 

announced on January 4th the intent to close. 

 The County Board of Commissioners conducted a public comment period from January 

4, 2022 to February 3, 2022.  No comments were received. 

 The County Board of Commissioners conducted a public hearing at the February 15, 2022 

regularly scheduled Commission meeting.  The item was tabled for 1 month for staff to 

prepare a plan for needed improvements to the roads. 

9

Item X. 1.



 The County Board of Commissioners will conduct a public hearing and consider a motion 

to close the crossing at the March 15, 2022 regularly scheduled Commission meeting. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

Alternate #1 – Approve the closure of the railroad crossing on DeWitt Road. 

Alternate #2 – No Action; request additional information or revision. 

Alternate #3 – Reject the proposal to close the railroad crossing on DeWitt Road. 

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternate #1 

 

Other Alternatives: Alternate #2. 

 

Department Review: County Engineering; County Attorney 

 

Funding Source: N/A  

Attachments:  1. Project Narrative and location map. 

   2. Letter to public, adjacent properties. 

   3. Emergency Response Map 

10

Item X. 1.



GA HIGHWAY 21 N

DEWITT RD / 620060V

NORFOLK SOUTHERN MAINLINE

123'

88'

760 LF PAVEMENT REMOVAL
CROSSING

N: 904184.5808
E: 887938.8565

INSTALL GDOT CROSSING
CLOSURE BARRICADE

USING 5 18" RED DIAMONDS

INSTALL GDOT CROSSING
CLOSURE BARRICADE
USING 5 18" RED DIAMONDS INSTALL "DEAD END" ROAD SIGN AT

OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY INTERSECTION

INSTALL "DEAD
END" ROAD SIGN

EFFINGHAM COUNTY

RAIL CROSSING CLOSING

Drawing is based on a 34" x 22" Sheet

This map illustrates a general plan of the development which is for discussion purposes only. Does
not limit or bind the owner and is subject to change and position locations are for illustrative
purposes only and are subject to an accurate survey and property description. The information
contained in this map is subject to change with out notice and is for illustrative purposes only and
as such the producer assumes no legal responsibility.

DISCLAIMER

FIGURE: 01

0

SCALE:
1" = 

100' 400' 600' 800'200'

200'

N

W

S

E

8/25/21

PROJECT NO.

21-1027

Ball Maritime Group, LLC
www.ballmaritime.com

4 Cedar View Court | Savannah, Georgia | 31410 | (912) 662-2914
Copyright © 2021

PREPARED BY:

Drawing is based on a 34" x 22" Sheet

This map illustrates a general plan of the development which is for discussion purposes only. Does
not limit or bind the owner and is subject to change and position locations are for illustrative
purposes only and are subject to an accurate survey and property description. The information
contained in this map is subject to change with out notice and is for illustrative purposes only and
as such the producer assumes no legal responsibility.

DISCLAIMER

PREPARED FOR:

329 COMMERCIAL  DRIVE , S AVANNAH , GA  31406 / T:912.354.4626

www.husseygaybell.com

Established 1958
HUSSEY GAY  BE LL

SAVANNAH   ATLANTA   STATESBORO   CHARLESTON   COLUMBIA   NASHVILLE

P:\21-1027 OMNITRAX RAIL PLANNING\600 CADD\SHEETS\EXHIBIT\21-1027 FIG01A-RAILCROSSCLOSING.DWG -- PLOTTED: 10/12/2021 5:33: PM

DEWITT RD

GA HWY 21 N

SHAWNEE RD

OLD DIXIE HWY SARDMORE EGYPT RD

SAVANNAH TOWN RD

NORFOLK SOUTHERN MAINLINE

EFFINGHAM COUNTY

11

Item X. 1.



DEWITT ROAD
CROSSING CLOSURE

EFFINGHAM
HOSPITAL

CLYO

BERRYVILLE

STILLWELL
SPRINGFIELD

GUYTON

TUSCULUM

EGYPT

BETHEL

OLD LOUISVILLE ROAD

17
21

119

119

17

17

21

275

21

LEGEND:

ROADS
EXISTING ROUTE (10.5 Mi)

RAIL

P:\..\600 CADD\Sheets\Exhibit\21-1027 F02-EX ROUTING.DWG <> Plotted: 2/25/2022 12:32 PM By: B ALLEN

21

NAVD8821-1027

EFFINGHAM

2/22/2022

EFFINGHAM COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

DEWITT CROSSING CLOSING EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GA

EXISTING ROUTE

1" = 2 MILES

Ball Maritime Group, LLC
Copyright © 2022

4 Cedar View Court | Savannah, Georgia | 31410 | (912) 662-2914

SCALE:

PROPOSED ACTIVITY:

of

Date:

County: www.ballmaritime.com
JOB#:

Applicant:

SHEET:

DATUM:

GENERAL NOTES:

0 1 2 MILES 4 MILES

SCALE: 1"=2 MILES

12

Item X. 1.



DEWITT ROAD
CROSSING CLOSURE
(SEE INSET)

17
21

119

119

17

17

21

275

EFFINGHAM
HOSPITAL

21

CLYO

BERRYVILLE

STILLWELL
SPRINGFIELD

GUYTON

TUSCULUM

EGYPT

BETHEL

OLD LOUISVILLE ROAD

SHAWNEE RD

DEWITT RD

OLD DIXIE HWY S

21

SHAWNEE

DEWITT ROAD CROSSING
CLOSURE

LEGEND:

ROADS
PROPOSED RE-ROUTE (11.8 Mi)

RAIL

P:\..\600 CADD\Sheets\Exhibit\21-1027 F03-PR ROUTING.DWG <> Plotted: 2/25/2022 12:32 PM By: B ALLEN

22

NAVD8821-1027

EFFINGHAM

2/22/2022

EFFINGHAM COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

DEWITT CROSSING CLOSING EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GA

RE-ROUTING

1" = 2 MILES

Ball Maritime Group, LLC
Copyright © 2022

4 Cedar View Court | Savannah, Georgia | 31410 | (912) 662-2914

SCALE:

PROPOSED ACTIVITY:

of

Date:

County: www.ballmaritime.com
JOB#:

Applicant:

SHEET:

DATUM:

GENERAL NOTES:

0 1 2 MILES 4 MILES

SCALE: 1"=2 MILES

INSET
1" = 1/2 MILE

13

Item X. 1.



 

 

WELSEY CORBITT 

Chairman At Large 

 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

County Clerk 

 
 

TIMOTHY J. CALLANAN 

County Manager 

 

EDWARD L. NEWBERRY, JR. 

County Attorney 
 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners 

 
FORREST FLOYD  ROGER BURDETTE  JAMIE DELOACH  REGINARD S. LOPER, SR.  PHIL KIEFFER 

District 1                           Vice Chairman – District 2                         District 3                                            District 4                                              District 5 

804 South Laurel Street • Springfield, Georgia 31329 

(912) 754-2123 • Fax (912) 754-4157 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 12, 2022 

 

To: Resident of the Dewitt Road area, North Effingham County 

 

RE: Consideration of a railroad crossing closure on Dewitt Road 

 

The County recently engaged with the Norfolk Southern Railroad to determine what needs are required in order to create a 

new crossing access in the County for improved east-west vehicular access and continued long-term growth benefits for the 

County.  During these discussions, the County was made aware that there has been a directive from the Federal Highway 

Administration and the Federal Railway Administration over the last two decades to improve the safety of citizens nationally 

where we access railroad crossings.  This program aims to identify crossing locations that are considered to provide 

redundant access by vehicles where the crossing has lower traffic volumes.  The type of warning devices located at the 

crossings are also considered as the GDOT Section 130 Program uses the crossing inventory information for every public 

crossing in the state to determine what crossings will qualify to be programmed for crossing safety improvements annually. 

 

As part of this review, Dewitt Road (Crossing Number: 620060V) has been identified as a redundant, low volume crossing 

with alternate access provided by Shawnee (Crossing Number: 620057M) which is located approximately a half mile to the 

southeast of this crossing and has been recommended to be closed.  While we do understand closure of any roadway segment 

can provide some inconvenience, this location is provided reasonable alternative access to the south for while not increasing 

emergency response times or access in the event of an emergency.  Additionally, the alternate crossing is treated with active 

warning devices that include flashers and gates which provides a safer access point to cross the track which is currently 

seeing ten trains a day at speeds up to 49 MPH.  The crossing proposed to be closed is skewed and has limited sight distance 

on the approaches which further increases the risk to drivers who use this crossing.  The potential of this crossing qualifying 

under the State’s crossing safety program are unlikely due to the low volume of the road unless a collision occurred at the 

crossing. 

 

With the above issues in mind, the recommendation to the County Board of Commissioners is to close the road to through 

traffic at the railroad crossing location on Dewitt Road.  On the east side, the gravel shoulder area near the railroad 

communications tower would remain accessible as an area for vehicles to turn around and on the west side, the road would 

be abandoned toward the west to the private road accesses on the north and south side of the road and leave enough of a 

road section just past this point to allow for a three point turnaround using the road shoulders for vehicles to turn around.  

A exhibit is attached that explains the closure location. 

 

As with any roadway closure, the County Board of Commissioners will be holding a public meeting on February 15, 2022 

at 5pm at the NEW Effingham County Administration Building at 804 S. Laurel St., Springfield, GA 31329 to listen to any 

concerns regarding this proposal before voting on the proposal.  Thank your time and consideration of this safety 

improvement. 

 

If you have any questions, contact Tim Callanan, County Manager, at (912) 754-2123 or tcallanan@effinghamcounty.org. 

 

Sincerely, 

Timothy J. Callanan 

County Manager 

14

Item X. 1.

mailto:tcallanan@effinghamcounty.org


 

 

THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED  

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 

BETWEEN 

 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AND 

 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 

 

 THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into as of ___________ ___, 2022, by and between 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY (the "County"), acting by and through its Board of Commissioners, and 

the EFFINGHAM COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY D/B/A EFFINGHAM HOSPITAL 

(the "Authority"); 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Hospital Authorities Law of Georgia 

(O.C.G.A., Section 31-7-70 et seq, as amended) (the "Hospital Authorities Law"), the County 

established the Authority pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Commissioners of Roads 

and Revenue for Effingham County on February 6, 1968, and the Authority is now legally created, 

existing and operating; and 

 WHEREAS, the Hospital Authorities Law grants to the Authority the power to acquire, 

construct, equip, alter, repair and modernize health care facilities to promote the public health needs 

of the County and the State of Georgia; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has heretofore acquired and constructed and is now operating 

Effingham Hospital located in Springfield, Georgia (the "Hospital") and certain off campus 

outpatient facilities located in Effingham and Chatham Counties, Georgia (the off campus facilities 

and the Hospital are collectively referred to herein as the "Medical Facilities"); and 

15

Item X. 2.



 

2 

 

   

 WHEREAS, after careful study, in 2010, the Authority determined that in order to meet the 

healthcare needs of the citizens of Effingham County, it was necessary to modernize and expand the 

Hospital through renovations and improvements with an approximate cost of $30 Million dollars 

(the "Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority financed the amounts necessary for the Project in the amount of 

$30,989,800, through the issuance of revenue anticipation certificates (the "2010 Loan"), which 

funds, combined with existing resources of the Authority, redeemed the Series 1998 Certificates and 

provide funds for the modernization and expansion of the Hospital; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority financed the 2010 Loan through a lender (the "Lender") 

approved by the Federal Housing Administration (the "FHA"), in order to secure mortgage insurance 

from FHA thereby enhancing the credit of the Authority and reducing the borrowing cost on the 

2010 Loan; and 

  WHEREAS, the recent community assessment for Effingham County found that the 

key illnesses that lead to higher mortality rates include oncology diagnosis, poverty and other social 

determinates that impact the health of the community; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority through Effingham Hospital continues to maintain quality 

facilities and equipment available for clinical services and desires to expand its facilities to support 

access to healthcare services in the community; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority initially intended to redeem its revenue anticipation certificates, 

refinance the 2010 Loan and add supplemental funding for expanded projects (previously referred 

to as the “2021 Loan”) and as an alternative in order to support the financial feasibility of Effingham 

16

Item X. 2.



 

3 

Hospital, Authority intends to issue revenue anticipation certificates to redeem and refinance the 

2010 Loans and extend the term of the loan through 2047 with a Lender approved by the FHA and 

secured by the FHA federal mortgage insurance program (“2022 Loan”); and 

 WHEREAS, in order to secure FHA federal mortgage insurance, the Authority intends to 

provide to the Lender an irrevocable pledge of its revenues, including the revenues to be derived 

under this Contract; and 

WHEREAS, this Contract is authorized by the provisions of Article IX, Section III, 

Paragraph I of the Constitution of the State of Georgia and under the provisions of the Hospital 

Authorities Law; and 

 WHEREAS, the County, acting through its Board of Commissioners, desires to enter into 

this Contract with the Authority for the provision of medical or other care and hospitalization of the 

indigent sick and poor within the County by the Authority, all for the best interests of the residents 

of the County; and 

 WHEREAS, on the effective date of this Contract, the terms and conditions of this Contract 

shall supersede and replace the prior terms and conditions of the Contract effective on October 19, 

2010, as amended on December 15, 2020 and October 5, 2021; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and the undertakings as 

hereinafter set forth, it is agreed between the County and the Authority, each acting by and through 

its authorized officers, pursuant to resolutions duly adopted and properly passed, as follows; 

1. 

EFFECTIVE DATE; TERM 

 This Contract shall become effective as of the date of issuance and delivery of the 2022 Loan 

and shall continue in effect from said date until such time as the 2022 Loan as to principal, 

17

Item X. 2.



 

4 

redemption premium, if any, and interest shall have been paid in full or provision duly made 

therefore, but in no event shall the time hereof exceed 40 years, provided that the obligations of the 

County under this Contract shall not be extended beyond 2047 without the written consent of  the 

County, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

2. 

COUNTY COVENANTS 

 The County covenants and agrees: 

(a) For and during the term of this Contract, it will send all of the residents of the County 

who are indigent or otherwise unable to pay for and in need of medical care and 

hospitalization, to the extent practicable and consistent with patient choice, to the 

Medical Facilities for such medical attention and hospitalization, and to pay for such 

services so rendered as hereinafter set forth. 

(b) For and during the term of this Contract, the County shall make monthly payments 

to the Authority in amounts as may be necessary to assure the continuous operation 

of the Authority and its Medical Facilities during the term of this Contract and to 

provide reasonable reserves for the Authority, such amount due and payable under 

this Contract shall be determined from year to year during the term of this Contract 

and no sums shall be paid for the services in excess of the amounts necessary to 

provide for the maintenance and operation of the Medical Facilities of the Authority, 

including reasonable reserves, thereby providing adequate and necessary facilities for 

medical care and hospitalization of the residents of the County who are indigent or 

otherwise unable to pay for their medical care, provided that the County and the 

Authority have agreed that the minimum monthly payments necessary to support the 

18

Item X. 2.



 

5 

operations of the Authority and provide reasonable reserves shall be Three Hundred 

Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($300,000.00), totaling to Three Million Six Hundred 

Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($3,600,000.00) per year (the "Minimum Amount"), 

which Minimum Amount is based upon the anticipated cost of such services 

including the cost and expense of making the Medical Facilities available for the 

furnishing and performance of such services. The County shall levy an annual tax on 

all taxable property located within the boundaries of the County, as now existent and 

as same may hereafter be extended, at such rate or rates, not to exceed two (2) mills 

(but not less than the millage necessary (up to the applicable maximum mil limit 

proscribed by the Georgia Hospital Authorities law) to provide the Minimum Amount 

set forth above), as may be necessary to produce in each calendar year revenues which 

in the aggregate will be sufficient to fulfill the County's obligations hereunder, from 

which revenues there shall be appropriated sums sufficient to pay in full when due 

all of the obligations herein contracted to be paid by the County hereunder.  Nothing 

herein contained, however, shall be construed as limiting the right of the County to 

pay the obligations hereunder out of general funds or from other sources lawfully 

available for such purposes. 

(c) In order for the Authority to assure the payment of the County's obligations herein in 

a timely manner and without diminution, there is hereby created a first priority lien 

on any and all revenues realized by the County under and pursuant to the annual tax 

levied or payments otherwise made pursuant to the provisions of subparagraph 2 (b) 

above, which lien is superior to any that can hereafter be made or granted by the 

County. 

19

Item X. 2.



 

6 

3. 

AUTHORITY COVENANTS 

 The Authority covenants and agrees, during the term of this Contract: 

(a) to maintain and have available for the use on the part of the County, upon direction 

and authorization from the proper County authorities, the Medical Facilities to care 

for the residents of the County who are indigent or otherwise unable to pay for their 

medical care. 

(b) receive for admittance any residents of the County who are indigent or otherwise 

unable to pay for their medical care. The Authority shall make no charge for its 

services to any such residents, except as herein provided. This Contract, however, is 

not to be construed as preventing the Authority from accepting any voluntary 

payments which any such patients receiving treatment or who use the Hospital of the 

Authority may wish to make on their own behalf or as prohibiting it from collecting 

any hospitalization, accident, health or other type insurance or governmental program 

of which such person may be a beneficiary, or from asserting its statutory hospital 

lien against any recovery to which such person may be entitled; and provided, further, 

that nothing herein shall prevent the Authority from making charges for its services 

where the services are rendered to persons who are able to pay for some or all of their 

care. The Authority may also charge for services rendered to certain residents of the 

County who are indigent or otherwise unable to pay for their medical care on a pro 

rata basis where such person or persons have some ability to pay. 

(c) Nothing herein shall be construed or operate to prohibit the Authority from 

withholding service to any person until suitable arrangements have been made by the 

20

Item X. 2.



 

7 

person requesting treatment, or the person or agency acting for such person to pay for 

said treatment, subject to all state and federal laws, rules and regulations. 

(d) The Authority shall cooperate with the County in order to make the Medical Facilities 

available to the County and to persons for whom the County shall assume 

responsibility in furnishing medical attention and hospitalization. 

(e) The Authority shall provide to the County (i) an annual operating budget for each 

fiscal year of the Authority during the term hereof, together with information and 

data describing the operations of the Medical Facilities with comparative analysis to 

other similar healthcare institutions, on or before May 31 of each year and (ii) audited 

annual financial statements on or before 180 days after the end of the Authority's 

fiscal year.  Failure of the Authority to provide its budget and audit in a timely manner 

shall not release the County from its obligations hereunder, but the County shall have 

such remedies as may be available at law or equity to require the Authority to produce 

such budget and audit in a prompt and timely manner. The Authority shall provide to 

the County quarterly reviews at a regularly scheduled meeting to demonstrate the cost 

of the uncompensated care provided by the Authority, beginning on a date determined 

by the County. 

(f) So long as this Contract remains in full force and effect, the Authority will operate 

the Medical Facilities on as economical a basis as is consistent with good practice 

and any sums received over and above maintenance and operation costs, debt service, 

required reserves for contingencies and expansion, whether by payments  from 

contracting parties hereto or from other sources, shall be used to pay amounts to the 

County to reduce its cost of uncompensated care, subject to approval by FHA and/or 

21

Item X. 2.



 

8 

the Lender and provided such payments are permitted under the 2022 Loan 

covenants. The Authority, however, shall be the final arbiter and judge in accordance 

with the budget requirements of the Hospital Authorities Law pursuant to which the 

Authority was created, as to such excess earnings over and above debt service, 

maintenance, operation costs and reserves, provided that the Authority's 

determination as to the reserves necessary for future capital expansions in excess of 

$500,000 shall be made with the advice and consent of the Board of Commissioners 

of the County, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

(g) For and during the term of this Contract, the Authority grants to the County a first 

right of refusal and option to purchase ("Right of First Refusal") all or substantially 

all of the assets of the Medical Facilities (the "Assets") in the event the Authority 

determines to sell all or substantially all of the Assets and has received a bona fide 

offer (the "Offer") to purchase the Assets containing terms and conditions acceptable 

to the Authority and approved by FHA. Upon such determination by the Authority, 

the Authority shall provide written notice of its intent to sell and the details of the 

Offer to the County. The County shall have forty-five (45) days to notify the 

Authority in writing if it intends to exercise its Right of First Refusal and purchase 

the Assets on the terms and conditions set forth in the Offer. In the event the County 

exercises its Right of First Refusal in a timely manner, it shall complete the purchase 

of the Assets within ninety (90) days after notice by the County of such acceptance 

on the terms set forth in the Offer. In the event the County does not exercise its Right 

of First Refusal within said forty-five (45) days, the Authority shall be free to 

consummate the sale on the terms and conditions (excepting any non-material 

22

Item X. 2.



 

9 

modifications thereto) set forth in the Offer. In the event the Authority does not 

consummate the sale in accordance with the Offer (excepting any non-material 

modifications thereto), the Right of First Refusal shall apply to any subsequent sale 

of the Assets occurring during the term of this Contract. 

(h) The County shall have the right during the term hereof to perform or have performed, 

at its expense, financial and/or performance audits of the operations and books and 

records of the Authority. 

4. 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 It is mutually agreed: 

(a) The Authority has undertaken to and will operate the Medical Facilities so as to 

produce sufficient revenues to continuously operate the same. The revenues to be 

derived from the services and facilities herein contracted for, as well as any other 

revenues so received by the Authority, are hereby irrevocably pledged to FHA and/or 

the Lender. 

(b) The provisions of the Hospital Authorities Law are incorporated herein as a part 

hereof as though fully set forth verbatim herein. 

(c) After the initial closing of the 2022 Loan, the Authority may from time to time, issue 

additional indebtedness, bonds, revenue' certificate or obligations ranking as to the 

lien on the Assets of the Authority on a parity with, or junior to, the 2022 Loan 

provided that: 

(1) The payments covenanted to be made on the 2022 Loan have been made as 

required and the 2022 Loan is not otherwise in default; 

23

Item X. 2.



 

10 

(2) The governing body of the County approves the issuance of said additional 

indebtedness and reaffirms the provisions of this Contract; and 

(3) FHA and/or the Lender approve the issuance of the additional indebtedness. 

(d) While this Contract is between the parties hereto, it is acknowledged that FHA and/or 

the Lender has an interest herein, and the parties hereto covenant that this Contract 

cannot be modified or amended in any particular manner which would in any respect 

adversely affect the rights of FHA and/or the Lender, without their prior written 

consent. 

(e) This Contract and the obligations of the County and the Authority hereunder shall 

terminate in the event the Authority or any subsequent operator of the Hospital 

discontinues operations of the Hospital and is no longer capable of providing medical 

care and hospitalization to the residents of the County. 

(f) If any disagreement shall arise with reference to any of the terms or conditions of this 

Contract, or with reference to any matter connected with same, except as to the 

payments required to be made pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 2(b) hereof, 

the obligation for which shall be absolute and unconditional, such disagreement or 

dispute shall be immediately submitted to, and decided  by, arbitration in accordance 

with the rules of the American Arbitration Association, except as modified hereby. 

The County shall select one arbitrator and the Authority shall select one arbitrator 

and the two so selected shall select a third arbitrator. The decision of two of the three 

arbitrators so chosen shall control and shall be binding on the parties hereto, as a 

condition precedent to any action before a court of law or equity; provided that if the 

two arbitrators first chosen cannot agree on a third, such third arbitrator shall be 

24

Item X. 2.



 

11 

13884709–1 

appointed by the Judge of the Superior Court of Effingham County upon application 

by any of the parties hereto. 

(g) Should any phrase, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this Contract be held invalid or 

unconstitutional, it shall in nowise affect the remaining provisions, which said 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, acting through their duly authorized officers, 

have caused this Contract to be executed as of the day and year first above written. 

 

 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY  

 

By:       

Its: ______________________________ 

 

(SEAL) 

 

Attest:      

County Clerk 

 

 

 

 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY 

 

By:       

Its:       

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

Attest:      

Its:     

 

 

25

Item X. 2.



#022-010 

RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT 

AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN EFFINGHAM COUNTY AND 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, Effingham County and the Effingham County Hospital Authority executed an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) on October 19, 2010 to support the 2010 Bonds utilized for the 

modernization and expansion of the Hospital Authority of Effingham County’s hospital assets known as 

Effingham Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Effingham Health System (referred to herein as “Effingham Hospital”);  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the IGA, Effingham Hospital agrees to provide access to healthcare 

services for the indigent and sick in Effingham County; 

WHEREAS, the modernization project was successful and Effingham Hospital services continue 

to expand to serve the growing population in Effingham County;  

WHEREAS, the recent community assessment for Effingham County found that the key illnesses 

that lead to higher mortality rates include oncology diagnosis, poverty and other social determinates 

that impact the health of the community;  

WHEREAS, Effingham Hospital is an essential community provider in Effingham County and has 

expanded its healthcare services, including specialized services such as oncology and cardiology to best 

meet the needs of the community;  

WHEREAS, in order to support the financial viability of Effingham Hospital and maintain clinical 

services in the community, Effingham Hospital intends to refinance the 2010 Bonds and extend the term 

through 2047 through a mortgage program insured by the United States Housing and Urban 

Development Authority (“HUD”) to be referred to herein as “2022 Bonds”;  

WHEREAS, in order to support the refinancing and Effingham Hospital’s intent to extend the 

maturity date, Effingham County desires to amend the IGA to reflect the refinanced bonds will now be 

referred to as 2022 Bonds, to include the final amount of the indebtedness, to extended the term of the 

IGA through the 2022 Bonds maturity rate, to continue the County obligations of providing up to no less 

than Three Million Six Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($3,600,000.00) per year through the 

extended term and all other terms of the IGA shall remain substantially the same; and 

WHEREAS, Effingham Hospital agrees to continue to perform its obligations under the IGA, as 

amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

HEREBY adopts and approves the amendment to the IGA to enable the refinancing of the 2010 Bonds to 

26

Item X. 2.



be referred to as the 2022 Bonds, to reflect the extended maturity date through the HUD program, to 

reflect the extended term of the IGA to be coterminous with the 2022 Bonds, to continue the County 

obligations of providing up to no less than Three Million Six Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars 

($3,600,000.00) per year through the extended term and  to accurately reflect the Effingham Hospital 

indebtedness and its obligations to provide care to the indigent and sick in accordance with the 

obligations described in the IGA, as amended.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the resolution herein authorizes adoption as prescribed 

effective this ____ day of ____________, 2022 

 

APPROVED FOR ADOPTION 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

______________________ 

Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Stephanie D. Johnson, County Clerk 

27

Item X. 2.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Amendment #4 to the Contract for Roadside Mowing Services with the 

McGraley Company, LLC 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: Approval of Amendment #4 to the Contract for Roadside Mowing Services 

with the McGraley Company, LLC 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Amendment #4 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The County has a contract in place for roadside mowing services with the McGraley 

Company, LLC.  The term of the contract is January 1st, 2015 to December 31st, 2015 

with the option to renew for two additional one year terms until December 31st 2017.  

Amendment No.1 was approved in August 2017 allowing for the contract to run for two 

(2) additional years, ending on December 31st, 2019. Amendment No. 2 was approved 

in November 2019 allowing for an additional two (2) year term and a fee increase. 

Amendment No. 3 was approved April 2021 extending the term through December 31, 

2022 and increasing the fee to $251,086.60 ($62,771.65 per mowing cycle). 

 McGraley has requested Amendment #4 increasing the billed mileage for Old Louisville 

Road. Currently it’s being billed for 3 miles, but the area is actually 7 miles. This will 

check the moving fee by $234.94 per additional mile, $939.76 per mowing cycle. 

 There are two mowing cycles remaining in this fiscal year, and two mowing cycles before 

the end of the agreement. The mowing cycle fee will increase to $63,711.41. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Amendment 3 to the Contract for Roadside Mowing Services with the 

McGraley Company, LLC. 

2. Take no action.   

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, County Attorney, Public Works, Finance 

Funding Source: 

Attachments: 

1. Amendment 4 to the Contract for Roadside Mowing Services 

2. Fully Executed Contract and Amendments 1 through 3 

 

 

28

Item XI. 1.



 
Amendment No. _4_to the 

Contract for Roadside Mowing Services 
Executed September 16th, 2014 

between 
Board of Commissioners of Effingham County 

and 
The McGraley Company, LLC 

 

 
THIS AMENDMENT NO.  __4__ (the "Amendment") is entered into this ____ day of _____________ , 2022 by and 

between the County of Effingham (“COUNTY”) with offices at 804 S Laurel Street, Springfield, GA 31329 and The 

McGraley Company, LLC with offices at 111 Dixie Drive, Springfield, GA 31329 

 

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY and The McGraley Company, LLC entered into a Contract dated September 16th, 2014 for 

Roadside Mowing Services (as amended, the “Contract”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the provisions of the Contract; and 

 

NOW, THERFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises in the Contract, and for other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as set 

forth below.   

1. Term: No change to the term. The current term will expire on December 31, 2022.  
 

2. Fee:  The fee will increase due to the increase in mileage on Old Louisville Road. The current mileage fee is 
based on 3 miles, but the road is actually 7 miles. The annual fee will increase by $939.76 per mowing cycle, 
bringing the total annual agreement to $254,845.64 ($63,711.41 per mowing cycle).  

 

3. Contract Services: Services rendered through this agreement will be monitored by the Public Works 
Department of Effingham County, currently under the supervision of EOM. 

 

4. Except as specifically set forth herein, all other terms and provisions of the Contract and Amendment No’s.1 
through 3 to the Contract shall remain unaffected by this Amendment and continue in full force and effect. 

 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. __4___ to be signed by their duly 

authorized representatives the day and year first written above. 
 

 
      The McGraley Company, LLC                      Effingham County Board of Commissioners 

 
 

By: __________________________________   By: __________________________________ 
  

 
      Printed Name: _________________________         Printed Name: Wesley Corbitt____________ 

 
 

Title: ________________________________    Title: Chairman_________________________ 
 
 

Dated: _______________________________    Dated:_______________________________ 

 

29

Item XI. 1.



30

Item XI. 1.



31

Item XI. 1.



32

Item XI. 1.



33

Item XI. 1.



Nicole Rahn

owner

09/18/2017

34

Item XI. 1.

FCHARLETON
Typewritten Text

FCHARLETON
Typewritten Text

FCHARLETON
Typewritten Text

fcharleton
Sticky Note
Dec 31 2017 to Dec 31 2019



35

Item XI. 1.



Nicole Rahn

owner

5/10/2021

36

Item XI. 1.



Staff Report 
 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Resolution of Surplus 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Various 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: Surplus 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Resolution 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 From time to time the County has broken, unused, damaged or extra inventory. In 
order for the county to properly dispose of these items they must be declared 
surplus in accordance with O.C.G. A § 36-9-2 which states that the county “…may, 
by order entered onto its minutes, direct the disposal of any real property which may 
be lawfully disposed of and make and execute good and sufficient title thereof on 
behalf of the County.”  

 This resolution consists of various items which have either been replaced or are no 
longer in use.   

 This is a list of vehicles that the Effingham County Sheriff’s Office would like to 
surplus due to receipt of Enterprise vehicles. 

 
Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Board’s approval of the Resolution of Surplus. 
2. Do not approve the Resolution of Surplus 
 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

 

Other Alternatives: 2 

 

Department Review: Various 

 

Funding Source: NA 

 

Attachments: Resolution of Surplus 

 

 

 

 

37

Item XI. 2.



Description Department Year Make Model
Serial Number / Identifying 

Number
Amount UOM

Vehicle ECSO 2014 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT2DH717699 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2008 Ford Crown Vic 2FAFP71V08X139914 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2013 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT4DH677027 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2015 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXATXFH925798 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2008 Dodge Charger 2B3KA43G18H292563 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2017 FORD EXPLORER 1FM5K8AR3HGD67100 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2005 FORD Expedition 1FMPU15545LA65061 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2015 FORD INTERCEPTOR 1FM5K8ARXFGB41505 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2014 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT2EH191303 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2014 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT0DH717698 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2013 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT7DH701238 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2112 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT4CH316265 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2014 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT6EH348752 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2014 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT9EH191315  1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2013 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT7DH677040  1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2013 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT9DH677038  1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2016 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT7GH147087 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2014 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT1EH348755 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2015 DODGE CHARGER 2C3CDXAT8FH925797 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2005 FORD Crown Vic 2FAFP71WX5X116452 1 ea

This _______________ day of March 2022

__________________________________________________

Effingham County Board of Commissioners ATTEST:

 

Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk

Pursuant to said resolution the above described surplus property will be demolished,  offered for sale by auction or by sealed bid;  will be traded for newer or alternate equipment or will be donated 

to non-profit. 

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County Georgia, in regular session assembled on March 15, 2022 by this resolution declare the following described property 

surplus and authorize the public sale, or disposal thereof:

NOTICE OF SALE

38

Item XI. 2.



Staff Report 
Subject: Ratification of approval of the Gas South Agreement for natural gas services 

for multiple County buildings 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Multiple 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: Ratification of Approval of the Gas South Agreements 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends ratification of approval of the Gas 

South Agreement for natural gas services for multiple County buildings 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Currently Effingham County has agreements with Constellation with a rate of 

$0.419 per therm and a DDDC rate of $8.50. Their proposed new agreements list 

the new rate at $0.669 with a DDDC rate of $8.50 per. According to 

Constellation, the rate is steadily increasing. 

 At the direction of the Board of Commissioners, staff requested quotes from 

Georgia Natural Gas and Gas South which were discussed at the March 1, 2022 

meeting. Due to the difference in the therm rate and DDDC rate, the Board 

requested to move forward with Gas South. 

 Due to the unstable market, Gas South couldn’t guarantee the rate would remain 

until March 15, so the County Manager signed the agreement and we are asking 

for ratification. 

 The County Attorney has reviewed the agreement and approved the agreement 

to form. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Ratification of approval of the Gas South Agreement for natural gas services for 

multiple County buildings 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Purchasing, County Manager 

Funding Source: Department Operating Budgets 

Attachments: 

1. Gas South Agreement for Natural Gas Services 

 

 

 

39

Item XI. 3.



40

Item XI. 3.



41

Item XI. 3.



42

Item XI. 3.



43

Item XI. 3.



44

Item XI. 3.



45

Item XI. 3.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of RecDesk Quote #000021 for an updated software program for the 

Recreation Department 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Recreation 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: RecDesk Quote #000021 for an updated software program for the 

Recreation Department 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of RecDesk Quote #000021 

for an updated software program for the Recreation Department 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The Recreation Department is looking to upgrade to a system that is all inclusive, 

in that it offers scheduling (leagues and facilitate rentals), registration and the 

ability to accept credit cards. They are currently using a computer software, ALL 

Pro Software League Scheduler, to schedule all of our leagues, which was a CD 

Rom program for a one-time payment of $150, and they have been using it for 

over 20 years. They have also using Sportsman SQL, made by Peak Software 

for their payments and registration system since May 2015 for an annual fee of 

$2,264.95. 

 The RecDesk system is used by other Rec Departments in the area. Screven 

Co., Evans Co. and Lyons, and all have recommended it.  

 RecDesk offers program registration, facility scheduling, email marketing tools, 

financial reporting, and invoicing/billing. It also has the capability for credit card 

processing with no fee for The County. There are also no per-transaction costs. 

The first $500,000 in transactions processed through the system are included in 

the base price. If more than $500,000 worth of transactions are processed 

through RecDesk in a given subscription year, those in excess of $500,000 will 

be assessed a .75% transaction fee. As a comparison, our largest season of 

baseball and softball with 1033 participants took in $72,310. 

 There would be no contract, no additional start up fees or charges for training 

and support. In order to get RecDesk setup and going before Sportsmen is due 

to be renewed in May, they offered a pro-rated rate of $2,083 for May and June. 

On July 1 it would be an annual fee of $12,500. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of RecDesk Quote #000021 for an updated software program for the 

Recreation Department for an annual payment of $12,500.00 and a payment of 

$2,083 for May and June 

46

Item XI. 4.



2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Finance, Purchasing, Recreation, IT 

Funding Source: Recreation Operating Budget 

Attachments: 

1. RecDesk Quote 

2. Explanation from Recreation recommending RecDesk 

3. Civic Plus Proposal 

 

 

 

 

47

Item XI. 4.



48

Item XI. 4.



Effingham County Board of Commissioners

Acceptance By:  Wesley Corbitt, Chairman____________

Signature:_______________________________________

Date:___________________________________________

49

Item XI. 4.



Effingham County Recreation and Sports Management 

RecDesk Program Proposal 

The Recreation and Sports Management Department is currently using a computer software, ALL Pro Software 

League Scheduler, to schedule all of our leagues. We made a one-time payment of $150, it is a CD Rom 

program and have been using it for over 20 years. We are also using Sportsman SQL, made by Peak Software 

for our payments and registration system. We have been using Sportsman since May 2015. It has an annual 

fee of $2,264.95 

The Recreation Department is looking to upgrade to a system that is all inclusive, in that it offers scheduling 

(leagues and facilitate rentals), registration and the ability to accept credit cards, both in the office and at 

concession stands.  

We had demos done by both CivicRec/Rec1 and RecDesk. Both programs were very similar in their capabilities 

and would meet our needs. However, CivicRec/Rec1 uses the CivicPlus platform that The County has used for 

its webpage and has had some issues. The price tag for CivicRec/Rec1 is Year 1 -  $17,713. Annual recurring 

services Year 2 - $9,975 and requires a contract.  

The RecDesk system is used by other Rec Departments in the area. Screven Co., Evans Co. and Lyons, and have 

recommended it.  

RecDesk offers program registration, facility scheduling, email marketing tools, financial reporting, and 

invoicing/billing. RecDesk uses Munis and Tyler for its finances. It also has the capability for credit card 

processing with no fee for The County. There are also no per-transaction costs. The first $500,000 in 

transactions processed through the system are included in the base price. If more than $500,000 worth of 

transactions are processed through RecDesk in a given subscription year, those in excess of $500,000 will be 

assessed a .75% transaction fee. As a comparison baseball and softball, our largest season with 1033 

participants, took in $72,310.  

On the tech side, they have fully managed hosting, automatic upgrades, 24/7 system monitoring, application 

firewall, database and server backups, security updates, DDoS attack mitigation and backed by AWS. Any 

standard USB triple-track magnetic card reader should work fine with RecDesk. It must be a reader that 

supports Keyboard Emulation (KBE). RecDesk also offers unlimited users. The Sportsman program and League 

Scheduler that we are currently using has a limit of four users at a time. RecDesk integrates with Sendgrid to 

send bulk email campaigns.  

There would be no contract, no additional start up fees or charges for training and support. In order to get 

RecDesk setup and going before Sportsmen is due to be renewed in May, they offered a pro-rated rate of 

$2083 for May and June. On July 1 it would be an annual fee of $12,500. 

 

 

 

 

50

Item XI. 4.



51

Item XI. 4.



52

Item XI. 4.



53

Item XI. 4.



54

Item XI. 4.



55

Item XI. 4.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Quote from Toast, Inc. for the software and equipment to allow Recreation 

to accept credit card payments at concession stands 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Recreation 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: Approval of Quote from Toast, Inc. 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Quote from Toast, Inc. for the 

software and equipment to allow Recreation to accept credit card payments at concession 

stands.  

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Toast is a payment processing system that is going to replace what we currently have 

for recreation concessions. We had built POS terminals to use Point & Pay credit card 

processing that the rest of the county uses but the process was so difficult that no one 

ever used it. Currently concessions are a cash only operation, which makes it difficult for 

parents and kids at sporting events. 

 Toast will allow them to take credit card payments or cash payments. It integrates the 

cash drawer into the system and will print receipts for the customers. This will also have 

a “kitchen” display so that orders can be processed and prepped as they come in. It has 

a customer facing display and payment point so that the customer can see their order 

and make their payment with their card without having to hand it to someone. This 

promotes security of the cards. 

 The system is able to generate reports so that staff can see daily transactions and totals. 

This gives them the ability to plan and order supplies appropriately. Having the 

integrated cash drawer allows for better tracking and management of cash and allows 

for easier reconciling the till at the end of the day. 

 This quote is for the Clarence Morgan Complex and staff has plans to add this system to 

other concession stands as well.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Quote from Toast, Inc. for the software and equipment to allow Recreation to 

accept credit card payments at concession stands for a one-time payment of $2,892.80 

and a recurring fee of $133.00 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Finance, County Manager, Purchasing 

Funding Source: Recreation Operating Budget 

Attachments: Quote from Toast, Inc.  

 

 

56

Item XI. 5.



 

Quote for Clarence Morgan Complex 
Expires Jan 5, 2022

Page 1 of 6

Mark Barnes
mbarnes@effinghamcounty.org

Clarence Morgan Complex
1750 Georgia 21
Springfield, GA 31329
United States

John Roppelt
john.roppelt@toasttab.com

Toast, Inc.
401 Park Drive
Boston, MA 02215
United States

HARDWARE

Product Name List Price QTY
Additional 

Discount
Total Price

 Toast Flex for Guest (wedge) with MSR, Toast 
Tap (On Counter), Toast Printer, Cash Drawer 
Bundle

$1,299.00 1 30% $909.30

 Toast Flex for Kitchen (On Stand) $699.00 1 30% $489.30

 Meraki Z3 Router $275.00 1 50% $137.50

 TP-Link 16 Port Switch $85.00 1 50% $42.50

SUBTOTAL
$1,578.60

POS SOFTWARE

SOFTWARE

Product Name List Price QTY Additional 
Discount

Total 
Price

 Online Ordering Monthly Subscription $75.00 1 30% $52.50

 Toast TakeOut Subscription $0.00 1 $0.00

57

Item XI. 5.



Quote for Clarence Morgan Complex 
Expires Jan 5, 2022

Page 2 of 6

SUBTOTAL
$52.50

TABLET SOFTWARE

Product Name List Price QTY Additional 
Discount

Total 
Price

Software Monthly Subscription $90.00 1  30% $63.00

Kitchen Display Screen Monthly 
Subscription

$25.00 1  30% $17.50

SUBTOTAL
$80.50

SUBTOTAL $133.00

INSTALLATION

Product Name List Price QTY Additional 
Discount Total Price

Core Implementation - 1 to 2 Tablets
            

Access to Onboarding Specialist 
Hardware Installation Walk Through 
Configuration 
Menu Build (not customer facing; 
template required) 
Menu review with customer (2 hours) 
Remote trainings 
60 min - Staff 
90 min - Managers 
Go Live Support (4 hours) 
Access to extensive catalogue of Toast 
Setup support and Training materials 
Also available for Toast Now Customers

         
  

$849.00 1 50% $424.50

Additional On Site Toast Contractor
            

8 hours of onsite labor 
Up to 10 terminal installs 
Manager or Staff training

         
  

$1,000.00 1 50% $500.00

58

Item XI. 5.



Quote for Clarence Morgan Complex 
Expires Jan 5, 2022

Page 3 of 6

SUBTOTAL
$924.50

One Time Charge: $2,892.80

Recurring Charge: $133.00

59

Item XI. 5.



Quote for Clarence Morgan Complex 
Expires Jan 5, 2022

Page 4 of 6

0% FINANCING AVAILABLE UPON APPROVAL
Do you have any questions / concerns about upfront costs?  Our popular 0% financing option allows you to make 

manageable monthly payments and keep cash in your pocket upfront. You could finance the whole system 
(hardware and software) for as low as $213.36/month.

APPLY NOW FOR 0% FINANCING

                                                                                  

60

Item XI. 5.

https://hub.toasttab.com/financing
https://hub.toasttab.com/financing


Quote for Clarence Morgan Complex 
Expires Jan 5, 2022

Page 5 of 6
61

Item XI. 5.



 

Quote for Clarence Morgan Complex 
Expires Jan 5, 2022

Page 6 of 6
62

Item XI. 5.



 

   

2.5                Order Form; Page 1  

     TSFID: 
   

TOAST MERCHANT AGREEMENT INITIAL ORDER FORM 
   

Software Subscription Total:   Hardware & Implementation Totals:   

Software Subscription: $   Total Hardware Cost(2): $   

Software Billing Method:   Total Implementation Cost(2): $   

 Contract Start Date(1):   Initial Term:   Payment Terms:   

(1) Software billing for point of sale Software shall commence on 

the earlier of (i) Contract Start Date which is defined as ____ 

days from the Effective Date of this Order and (ii) the Go-Live 

Date. 

Product Lifetime Policy: Toast products are subject to our Product Lifetime 

Policy. For details, read  

(2) Totals above do not include taxes or shipping costs. Prices are estimates 

and subject to change. Additional fees may apply for cancelations and for 

services outside M-F, 7am-9pm local time, for more details see:     

   

  (Non-Refundable) Deposit     

   

Total Deposit Amount:   
Deposit Payment Method:   ACH Account Type:   

Card number (for deposit payment only):   
   
   

Type:   

Exp:   

Non-refundable deposit: This deposit is non-refundable and is due upon execution of this form.   

   

CREDIT CARD PROCESSING RATES   
   

VISA / MASTERCARD / DISCOVER   

Pricing Structure:   Monthly Processing Fee:   

Card-Present Credit Card Rate (Swiped):              % + $   

Card-Not-Present Credit Card Rate (Keyed):        % + $   

Pricing Conditions: Toast pricing for VISA, MasterCard, and Discover rates are valid only for merchants located in the United 

States. Your participation in Toast payment processing is further subject to the Standard Terms and Conditions, which can 

be found at    
 

AMERICAN EXPRESS   

AMEX Processing Type:   Estimated Annual AMEX Volume:   

Do you want to accept AMEX:   Do you have an existing AMEX account:   
   

Existing AMEX Merchant ID:   

Card-Present AMEX Fee (Swiped):              % + $   

Card-Not-Present AMEX Fee (Keyed):           % + $   

DocuSign Envelope ID: F30CA415-AC00-468B-BD53-E7246ADD70EADocuSign Envelope ID: A7052142-97CD-4DE9-BE57-18D371A902A1

63

Item XI. 5.



 

   

2.5                Order Form; Page 2  

     TSFID: 
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

MERCHANT APPLICATION   
   

   Restaurant Location Information     

Restaurant Name (DBA):        

Restaurant Location 

Address:   

     

City:      State:   ZIP Code:   

Phone:   Fax:    Email:     

New or Existing Business?      Restaurant Category:     

Annual Card Volume: $      Average Ticket Amount: $     

  Business Legal Information   

Federal Tax ID/EIN (9 digits, no dash):   Number of Locations:   

Business Legal Name:   

Registered Legal Address (if different from Restaurant Location address):   

City:   

State:    ZIP Code:   

Date Business Commenced:   Ownership Type:   

     Owner Information   

 

First Name:      Last Name:    Percent of Ownership(3):   

Title:       Date of Birth:     

Phone:       Email:     

Home Address:       Years at Address:     SSN:   

City:       Driver’s License:     Issuing State:   

State:   ZIP Code:     Issued Date:     Exp. Date:   

DocuSign Envelope ID: F30CA415-AC00-468B-BD53-E7246ADD70EADocuSign Envelope ID: A7052142-97CD-4DE9-BE57-18D371A902A1

64

Item XI. 5.



 

   

2.5                Order Form; Page 3  

     TSFID: 
   

   
     Primary Contact for Toast Implementation   

Same as Owner Contact?   First Name:   Last Name:   

Title:   Phone:   Email:   

   

  Finance Contact     

Same as Owner Contact?   First Name:   Last Name:   

Phone:     Email:     

    

Secondary Owner Contact Information (if applicable): 

First Name:    Last Name:   Percent of Ownership(3):   

Home Address:     City:   State:   

ZIP Code:     Date of Birth:   SSN:   

(3) Ownership details must be provided for each individual or legal entity owner with a 25% or greater ownership interest. Total percent 

of ownership on this agreement must total over 50%. Please attach an Additional Owner Addendum, if necessary, to complete this 

requirement. Each owner authorizes Toast to obtain and to review third party credit bureau reports on such owner.   

   

Merchant understands and acknowledges that:   
   

One “day” of implementation services shall be equal to 8 hours of service. Implementation 

services shall be delivered anytime between the hours of 7am and 9pm local time, Monday -  

Friday (“Toast Standard Hours”). Any additional hours per day, or hours outside of Toast  

Standard Hours, shall require Merchant to pay additional fees at the then current rate for the total 

amount of hours and number of technicians necessary to complete implementation. All services 

and fees shall be in accordance with  
   

Toast does not provide cabling services and the estimates provided above do not include 

cabling costs. If cabling is required Toast may recommend a local partner. More 

information can be found in the Toast Site Readiness Guide    
    

After scheduling service appointments (menu review, installation, training or go-live support), 

Merchant shall have until 7 days before the scheduled date to cancel the service appointment. 

Canceling within 7 days of the service appointment will result in Merchant being assessed a  

service fee for each day canceled in accordance with 

   

 

    
   

DocuSign Envelope ID: F30CA415-AC00-468B-BD53-E7246ADD70EADocuSign Envelope ID: A7052142-97CD-4DE9-BE57-18D371A902A1

65

Item XI. 5.



 

   

2.5                Order Form; Page 4  

     TSFID: 
   

  Banking Information / Voided Check   

Bank Name:     Account Type:   

Routing Number:     DDA / Account Number:   

Merchant hereby authorizes Toast and its designated agents and representative, to initiate credits and debits, as applicable, to the bank 

account listed above or such substitute bank account as Merchant may designate ("Bank Account") through the automated clearing house 

(“ACH”) network. Toast and its designated agents and representatives will initiate credits and debits to the Bank Account in accordance 

with the Agreement. This authority will remain in effect until five (5) business days after Toast receives written notice from Merchant of its 

change of Bank Account. Merchant will at all times maintain sufficient funds on deposit in the Bank Account for the debiting of amounts 

owed under the Agreement. If there are insufficient funds in the Bank Account to satisfy any amounts owed Toast, Merchant shall 

immediately send Toast such amounts upon demand. If the account information provided above changes at any time, Merchant will 

provide the current account information to Toast within five (5) business days. Neither Toast nor its designated agents and representatives 

shall be liable to Merchant for any delays in receipt of funds or errors in credit entries caused by third parties, including but not limited to, 

a clearinghouse, Merchant’s financial institution, or any agent of Merchant. Merchant is solely liable for all fees and all overdrafts, 

regardless of cause. Toast shall have the unlimited right to debit without prior notice, any Bank Account containing funds for the purpose 

of satisfying any liability incurred on behalf of Merchant and any amounts owed to Toast under this Agreement. A fee of $50.00 may be 

imposed by Toast for all rejected ACH transactions. Merchant agrees to comply with the operating rules and guidelines of the National 

ACH Association and the laws of the United States, as in effect from time to time with respect to ACH transactions.   

   

(PLEASE ATTACH A CLEARLY LEGIBLE PICTURE OF A VOIDED CHECK)   

Voided check or another form of routing & account number verification is required.
  

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS AGREEMENT 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT   

USA PATRIOT ACT NOTICE AND INFORMATION COLLECTION To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, federal law requires all 

financial institutions to, obtain, verify and record information that identifies each person (individual or business) that opens an account. Toast collects this information on behalf 

of its financial institution partners. For this reason, Toast requests your name, address, date of birth and social security number. Toast also requests information about your 

company. This allows Toast to identify Merchant and its owners. Toast may also ask for your driver’s license or other identifying documents and information. Each owner, control 

person, and/or officer/manager listed herein understands Toast may obtain and review information from consumer reporting agencies and/or other informational searches on 

such individual from time to time to validate the authenticity of information provided and conduct criminal background checks.   

   
This Merchant Agreement (this “Agreement”) is between Toast, Inc., a Delaware corporation with offices at 401 Park Drive, STE 801, Boston, MA 02215 (“Toast”), and the 

company listed above (“Merchant”). This Agreement includes, collectively, (1) this Order Form, and (2) the Standard Terms and Conditions available at                                                                                                                

                                                                              . Merchant acknowledges the receipt of this Agreement. All capitalized, undefined terms used in this   

Agreement shall have the meaning set forth in the Standard Terms and Conditions. Merchant has read, understands, and agrees to be bound by this Agreement, as may be 

amended from time to time in accordance therewith. Merchant acknowledges that this Agreement is a fundamental part of the parties’ agreement without which Toast would 

not provide services to Merchant. Merchant can request a copy of the Standard Terms and Conditions at any time by contacting a Customer Service Representative at  

617682-0225 or support@toasttab.com.   

SIGNATURE  

  

    

   

 

Merchant Legal Name  
  

    

Authorized Signer Name (please print)  

  
_________________________________________________ 

Title                                                                  Date Signature  
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F30CA415-AC00-468B-BD53-E7246ADD70EADocuSign Envelope ID: A7052142-97CD-4DE9-BE57-18D371A902A1

66

Item XI. 5.



  

   

 

  Special Terms:   
                                                                 
   

DocuSign Envelope ID: F30CA415-AC00-468B-BD53-E7246ADD70EADocuSign Envelope ID: A7052142-97CD-4DE9-BE57-18D371A902A1

67

Item XI. 5.



Staff Report 

 

Subject:  Location Agreement (Fourth District) 

Author:  Teresa Concannon, Planning & Zoning Manager 

Department:  Development Services 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: Consideration to approve a Location Agreement for Randy Smoak to hold 

a “Night of Praise” event on Sunday, July 3, 2022, at the Effingham 

County Courthouse. Located at 700 N. Pine St., in Springfield. Map# 

S101 Parcel# 21 

 

Summary Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval for a Location Agreement for a “Night of Praise” event on Sunday, 
July 3, 2022, from 7pm – 9pm, at the Effingham County Courthouse, at 700 N. Pine St., in 
Springfield, with stipulations. 
 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The “Night of Praise” event will involve performances of patriotic music. 

 Preparation for the event will occur on Sunday, July 3, and will involve sound 

engineering setup and stage decoration, as well as roping off set-up areas, preparing the 

seating area, and blocking the road. 

 Attendees will bring their own seating and refreshments. 

 Restroom facilities are not provided. 

 The applicant requests access to a power source. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1 - Approve request for a Location Agreement for a “Night of Praise” event on Sunday, July 3, 
2022, from 7pm – 9pm, at the Effingham County Courthouse, at 700 N. Pine St., with the 
following stipulations: 

1. Coordinate with City of Springfield for road closure approval. 
2. Provide clean up services after the event. 
3. Provide power source if county facilities are not approved. 

 
2 - Deny request for a Location Agreement for a “Night of Praise” event on Sunday, July 3, 
2022, at the Effingham County Courthouse, at 700 N. Pine St. 
 
Recommended Alternative: #1   Other Alternatives: #2 
 

Department Review: Development Services Funding Source: N/A 

 

Attachments:  1. Location Agreement 

   2. Letter from Applicant 

3. Site plan 

 

68

Item XI. 6.



 

69

Item XI. 6.



Page 1 of 3 

LOCATION AGREEMENT 

This Location Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) is made and entered into 

by and between ____________________________ and Effingham County Board of 

Commissioners (hereinafter referred to as “County”). 

WHEREAS, County owns the building located ___________________________, (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Site”); and 

WHEREAS, _____________________________ wishes to utilize the Site for the purpose of a 

_____________________________________ and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to set forth the terms and conditions upon which HES shall be 

permitted to utilize the Site for its Show; and  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, and 

in order to obtain the mutual benefits provided hereunder, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Grant and Release.  The County owns the Site and hereby grants 

_______________________________ permission to use the Site in the manner and during 

the term hereinafter specified.  __________________________________ accepts the Site 

“as is” and waives all objections or causes of action due to defects therein, whether or not 

such defects are apparent.  ____________________________ releases County from any 

and all claims, demands, or causes of action which 

_________________________________, its successors, assigns and licensees may now 

have or hereafter acquire for damage or injury to its property, employees, and agents due 

to defects in the Site.  HES further agree to indemnify and hold County harmless for any 

injury to ___________________________ employees and agents while on the Site.   

2. Term.  HES shall have use of the Site on ___________________ from the hours of

_________ to _____________ (hereinafter called the term of this agreement).  The use of

the Site shall not be longer than _____ hours.  _________________________ shall have

no right at any other time to use the Site for its Show or any other purpose.  However, the

parties may alter the date and/or time by agreement in writing.

3. Payment.  ___________________________shall pay $__25___ for the use of the Site.

This fee shall only provide for the use of the Site and for no other purposes, acts, or duties.

4. Restrictions on Use.  ______________________________ permission to conduct its

Show at the Site shall extend only to those activities described herein and

________________________ agrees to the following conditions and limitations:

(a) Preparation for its Show and cleanup of the Site following its Show shall be the sole

responsibility of _________________________.  _________________________ 

agrees that it will, following its use of the site, and before leaving the Site, restore same 

to as good a condition as existed prior to such use by HES. 

(b) _____________________________ shall not cause or permit any illegal activity to be 

conducted upon the Site. 

700 N. Pine Street, Springfield,

Randy Smoak

"Night of Praise" event

Randy Smoak
Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak,

XXX
Randy Smoak

XXX
Randy Smoak

July 3, 2022
11am 11pm

12 Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak's

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak Randy Smoak

XXX Randy Smoak.
Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

xxxRandy Smoak

70

Item XI. 6.



Page 2 of 3 

(c) _________________________________ shall make no changes or alterations to the 

Site without prior written consent of the County.  ____________________ shall be 

responsible for any damages to the Site resulting from use or occupancy thereof by 

itself, its agents, servants, or invitees and shall repair any damage to the Site prior to 

vacating the Site. 

(d) ____________________________ may put up appropriate props and scenery at the 

Site, however, all props and scenery must be put up in such a manner that no damage 

will be caused to the Site. 

5. Protection Against Accident to Employees and the Public.

_____________________________ shall at all times exercise reasonable precautions for

the safety of County employees and others on or near the Site and shall comply with all

applicable provisions of Federal, State, County, and Municipal safety laws.

6. Laws and Ordinances.  _____________________________ shall at all times observe and

comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances and regulations, which in any

manner affect ___________________________ or the work, and shall indemnify and hold

harmless the County against any claim arising from the violation of any such laws,

ordinances and regulations whether by ________________________ or its employees or

agents.

7. Indemnification.  ___________________________ shall defend, indemnify, and hold

harmless the County and its officers, agents, and employees from and against all damages,

injuries (including death), claims, property damages (including loss of use), losses,

demands, suits, judgments, and costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses,

occurring in any way or by any cause as a result of the use of the Site by

________________________________ arising out of or resulting from the performance of

this Agreement caused by the negligent act or omission of ________________________,

its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors or invitees or any other person involved in

any way with the activity of __________________ on the Site.

8. Responsibility for damages.  In addition to the Indemnification provisions of the preceding

paragraph, and without limitation thereto, _______________________ shall be responsible

for any and all damage related in any manner to its use of the Site.

9. Assignment and Subletting.  __________________________ shall not assign or sublet

this Agreement.

10. Termination.  After notification by County to __________________ of violations of any the

provisions set forth in this Agreement, ___________________________ shall remedy the

violation and/or prevent its reoccurrence.  _______________________ agree that in the

event it fails, without delay, to remedy a violation or if they allow a violation to reoccur, the

County may immediately terminate this agreement.  In the event of such termination,

________________________ shall immediately proceed to vacate the Site and return it to

its condition prior to ______________________ use.  _____________________ agree that

its failure to do so shall be deemed a criminal trespass.

Randy Smoak
Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak
Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak
Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak

Randy Smoak
Randy Smoak Randy Smoak

71

Item XI. 6.



Page 3 of 3 

11. Venue.  The laws of the State of Georgia shall govern the interpretation, validity,

performance and enforcement of this Agreement and the exclusive venue for any legal

proceedings involving this Agreement shall be Effingham County, Georgia.

12. Misc.  In the event any provision hereof is held to be invalid and unenforceable, such

invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity of enforceability of any other

provision hereof.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties hereto with

respect to the subject matter hereof, and no representation, inducements, promises or

agreements, oral or otherwise, not expressly set forth herein shall be of any force and effect.

This Agreement may not be modified except by written modification executed by all parties

hereto.  This Agreement shall be construed, governed and interpreted in accordance with

the laws of the State of Georgia.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed against

or interpreted to the disadvantage of any party by any court or other governmental or judicial

authority by reason of such party having or being deemed to have structured or dictated

such provision.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of

which shall be deemed to be the original and all of which together shall compromise but a

single instrument.  No consent or waiver, expressed or implied, by a party to any breach or

default by any other party in the performance by such other party of the obligations thereof

under this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver of any other

breach or default in the performance by such other party of any other obligations of such

party of this Agreement.  Failure on the part of any party to complain of any act or failure to

act of any other party or to declare such party in default, irrespective of how long such failure

continues, shall not constitute a waiver of such party of the rights thereof under this

Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed, or caused this Agreement to 

be executed by their duly authorized representatives, under the seal as of the day and year above 

written. 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners: 

ATTEST: 
________________________________ 

________________________________ 
Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairman Stephanie D. Johnson, County Clerk 

Date: ____________________________ 

By: 

Its: 

Date: 

Applicant:

72

Item XI. 6.



STAGE AREA  ROPED OFF AREA; ROAD CLOSURE  SEATING 

 

73

Item XI. 6.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:    GEMA State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) Grant 

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 3/15/22  

Item Description: Consideration to submit an application for a GEMA State Homeland 
Security Program (SHSP) Grant. 
 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting approval to submit an application for a GEMA State Homeland 

Security Program (SHSP) Grant. 

 

Executive Summary: 

The Homeland Security Grant Program supports the core capabilities across the five 
mission areas of Prevention, Protection, Mitigation, Response, and Recovery based on 
allowable costs. The HSGP supports the Quadrennial Homeland Security Review 
Mission to Strengthen National Preparedness and Resilience. HSGP funds a range of 
activities, including planning, organization, equipment purchase, training, exercises, and 
management and administration across all core capabilities and mission areas. At least 
eighty percent (80%) of funds must be passed through to local or tribal units of 
government. At least twenty-five percent (25%) of the overall HSGP funds received by 
the state must be dedicated towards law enforcement terrorism prevention activities 
(LETPA). 

Funding for this program is provided to Georgia Emergency Management and 
Homeland Security Agency (GEMA/HS). GEMA/HS is the state Administrative Authority 
for this program. Funding is provided by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS), Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), and Grant Programs 
Directorate (GPD) 

Background: 

1. The grant process is competitive. 
2. There is no cost share requirement and grant estimates are as follows: 

Sheriff Courthouse Item Item Cost Quantity Total 

IP Dome Camera w Night Vision - Vivotek  $   179.00  42  $     7,518.00  

IP Bullet Camera Outdoors with IR - Vivotek  $   229.00  6  $     1,374.00  

Gigabit POE 24 port switches - Cisco  $   649.00  4  $     2,596.00  

Cat 5E Network Cable Pulls  $   200.00  48  $     9,600.00  

NVR with OS  $   950.00  4  $     3,800.00  

8 Tb Hard Drives  $   239.00  8  $     1,912.00  

GRAND TOTAL  $    26,800.00  

74

Item XI. 7.



3. Application deadline is April 1, 2022. 
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve a GEMA SHSP grant application submittal.  
2. Do not approve a GEMA SHSP grant application submittal. 
3. Provide Staff with Direction 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve a GEMA SHSP grant application 

submittal. 

 

Other Alternatives: 

N/A  

 

Department Review: (list departments) 

Sheriff’s Office  

 

Funding Source: 

No cost share requirement 

 

Attachments: 

GEMA SHSP Grant Information 
 

 

 

 

 

75

Item XI. 7.



Application period for Homeland
Security Grant Program opens Feb.
14
F E B R U A R Y  0 1 ,  2 0 2 2

(ATLANTA) – The Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security

Agency announces the opening of the application period for the Homeland Security

Grant Program Monday, February 14.

The purpose of the Fiscal Year 2022 HSGP grant is to provide funds to eligible

entities to support state, local, tribal and territorial efforts to prevent terrorism and

other catastrophic events, and to prepare the nation for the threats and hazards

that pose the greatest risk to the security of the United States. The deadline to

apply for the grant is April 1, 2022.

“Our community continues to handle ever-increasing threats in areas such as cyber

security, active shooters and terroristic attacks,” said GEMA/HS Director Chris

Stallings. “The Homeland Security Grant Program allows agencies the opportunity

to obtain funding for assistance in potentially eliminating their dealings with these

threats.”

Georgia agencies are eligible for funds in the following FY 2022 grant programs:

State Homeland Security Program (SHSP): SHSP assists state, local, tribal

and territorial efforts to build, sustain and deliver the capabilities necessary to

prevent, prepare for, protect against and respond to acts of terrorism. For example,

SHSP funds can be utilized for enhancing cybersecurity and intelligence and

information sharing through cybersecurity risk assessments, training and

planning.

76

Item XI. 7.



Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI): UASI assists high-threat, high-

density urban areas efforts to build, sustain and deliver the capabilities necessary

to prevent, prepare for, protect against and respond to acts of terrorism. UASI

funds can be used in part, for physical security enhancement for the protection of

soft targets/crowded places by funding things like operational overtime, security

cameras and security screening equipment.

Applications will only be accepted on-line via the Georgia EMGrantsPro
Manager (https://ga.emgrants.com/index.cfm). GEMA/HS is the state

Administrative Authority for this program. Applicants needing grant support

should contact the GEMA/HS Preparedness Grants Department at (404) 635-

7095, or by email at hsgrants@gema.ga.gov
(mailto:hsgrants@gema.ga.gov).

###

As part of the Office of the Governor, the Georgia Emergency Management and

Homeland Security Agency collaborates with local, state and federal governments

in partnership with private sector and non-governmental organizations to protect

life and property against man-made and natural emergencies. GEMA/HS’s Ready
Georgia website and preparedness campaign provides Georgians with the

knowledge needed to effectively prepare for disasters. Go to

gema.georgia.gov/plan-prepare/ready-georgia
(https://gema.georgia.gov/plan-prepare/ready-georgia) for information

on developing a custom emergency plan and Ready kit.

77

Item XI. 7.

https://ga.emgrants.com/index.cfm
mailto:hsgrants@gema.ga.gov
https://gema.georgia.gov/plan-prepare/ready-georgia


Staff Report 

 
Subject:    AKC Pet Disaster Relief Grant 

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 3/15/22  

Item Description: Consideration to submit a grant application to the American Kennel 
Club Companion Animal Recovery Corporation (AKC Reunite) Canine Support and 
Relief Fund. 
 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting approval to submit a grant application to the American Kennel Club 
Companion Animal Recovery Corporation (AKC Reunite) Canine Support and Relief 
Fund. 
 

Executive Summary: 

AKC Reunite, through its Canine Support and Relief Fund, coordinates contributions 
and funds to donate AKC Pet Disaster Relief Units (“Units”) to qualified organizations 
and government units and instrumentalities. These Units are intended to be used to 
provide co-location for the pets and service animals of people evacuating emergency 
situations, in accordance with the federal PETS Act of 2006.  Each Unit comprises a 16 
ft. x 7 ft. two-axle trailer with many of the materials necessary to set up an emergency 
shelter for fifty or more pets and service animals. Deployment of these trailers helps 
municipalities provide its citizens co-location shelters, a safe place where people and 
pets can remain together in the event of an evacuation. 
 
Background: 
1. Each trailer unit is valued at $22,000. 
2. The grant is competitive. 
3. No cost share requirement. 
4. Application deadline is March 21, 2022. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve to submit a grant application to AKC Reunite.  
2. Do not approve to submit a grant application to AKC Reunite. 
3. Provide Staff with Direction 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve to submit a grant application to AKC 

Reunite. 

 

Other Alternatives: 

N/A  

78

Item XI. 8.



 

Department Review: (list departments) 

Effingham County Animal Shelter 

Effingham County Emergency Management 

 

Funding Source: 

No cost share requirement 

 

Attachments: 

AKC Reunite Grant Guidelines and Application 

 

  

 

 

 

79

Item XI. 8.



 

 Page 1 of 7 

 

CANINE SUPPORT AND RELIEF FUND 

AKC PET DISASTER RELIEF 

 GRANT GUIDELINES AND APPLICATION 
 
 
AKC PET DISASTER RELIEF 
 
AKC Reunite, through its Canine Support and Relief Fund, coordinates contributions and funds to 
donate AKC Pet Disaster Relief Units (“Units”) to qualified organizations and government units and 
instrumentalities. These Units are intended to be used to provide co-location for the pets and service 
animals of people evacuating emergency situations, in accordance with the federal PETS Act of 2006.  
Each Unit comprises a 16 ft. x 7 ft. two-axle trailer with many of the materials necessary to set up an 
emergency shelter for fifty or more pets and service animals.  
 
 
APPLICATION OVERVIEW:  
 

   Applicant must be a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization whose mission includes animal-related 
disaster relief activities, directly related to companion animals and service animals, in 

accordance with the federal PETS Act of 2006.  Alternatively, applicant may be a government 
unit or instrumentality. 

   Applicant must work with an American Kennel Club (“AKC”) member or licensed club(s) to raise 
funds for the Unit. 

   The current typical cost of each Unit is approximately $22,000. Once the sponsoring Local AKC 

club(s) have raised at least $12,000, AKC Reunite will allocate and supplement the additional 
funding to fully fund the trailer using National donations from AKC Parent Clubs and its own 
funding. These amounts are subject to change. If your Club or group of Clubs wants exclusive 
sponsorship of the trailer, a donation of $19,500 is required. All trailers are delivered with AKC 
Reunite logos and the AKC Pet Disaster Relief masthead. Club and other logos will be featured 
for funding of $1,000 or greater toward a trailer according to the logo schedule. 

   After sufficient funds for the purchase of the Unit have been raised, the application has been 
approved, and AKC Reunite and the recipient organization have entered into an AKC Pet 
Disaster Relief Unit Agreement, arrangements will made to order and deliver a Unit to the 
recipient organization. 

 
Applications for funding are considered without regard to race, gender, disability, religion, ethnicity, 
age or sexual orientation.   
 
 
APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS: 
 

   Applications must be in writing on the designated form or in the approximate format provided.  
Do not remove or omit any of the application’s questions. If a question is not applicable to your 
organization, please answer with N/A. 

80

Item XI. 8.



 

 Page 2 of 7 

   To apply, submit the following application in a hard-copy format (Sections A, B, C and D) 
Emailed versions are acceptable in portable document format (PDF) form only. Do not fax the 
grant application.  

   Retain one copy of the application for your records.  Multiple copies, videotapes or other 
attachments will not be accepted.  

   Do not bind the application with staples or folders or put into binders, as we must be able to 
separate and copy the application. Paper clips and binder clips are permitted.   

   You will be contacted by telephone or email if there are any discrepancies or concerns regarding 
the application.  

   Recipients will receive a Grant Follow Up Form which must be completed and returned in 
accordance with the AKC Pet Disaster Relief Unit Agreement.  

 
 
Applications can be sent to:  

Megan Ault – Grant Administrator  
AKC Reunite 
8051 Arco Corporate Drive, Suite 200 
Raleigh, NC 27617 
 
Megan.ault@akcreunite.org    phone: 919-816-3642 

 
 
OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 

1.  Applicant must be a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization whose mission includes animal-related 
disaster relief activities, directly related to companion animals and service animals, in 
accordance with the federal PETS Act of 2006.  Alternatively, an applicant may be a government 
unit or instrumentality. 

2.  Applicant must be ready, willing, able, trained and authorized to provide an emergency shelter 
for pets and service animals displaced due to natural or man-made emergencies or disasters. 

3.  An AKC member or licensed club must sponsor the application and raise funds to be 
complemented by funds from AKC Reunite for purposes of purchasing the Unit. 

4.  Recipient organization must sign the AKC Pet Disaster Relief Unit Agreement prior to receiving 
the Unit. 

5.  Recipient organization will take full title, responsibility and liability for the Unit. 
6.  Recipient organization will securely store the Unit and its contents. 
7.  Recipient organization must have access to a vehicle capable of transporting the Unit. The 

typical Unit is a 16ft x 7ft two-axle trailer with up to 10,000 lb GVW.  Truck should be at least 
¾ ton with electric brakes and 10,000 lb pound hitch.  

8.  Recipient organization must maintain and display the logos on the Unit as delivered.  Each Unit 
may include the logos of AKC, AKC Reunite, AKC member and licensed club(s) donating at least 
$1,000 for the purchase of the Unit, and other organizations donating at least $1,000 for the 
purchase of the Unit, in all cases, in the sole discretion of AKC.  No additional logos may be 
displayed on the Unit unless agreed by AKC in its sole discretion. 

9.  Recipient organization must pledge to display the Unit at least two times per year within the 
community, in cooperation with the sponsoring AKC member and licensed club(s), unless the 
Unit has been recently deployed in a declared emergency. The display should be at a 
community event such as the local AKC dog show, AKC Responsible Pet Ownership Day event, 
county or state fair, holiday parade, etc. 

81

Item XI. 8.



 

 Page 3 of 7 

10. Recipient will be responsible for replenishment of supplies after deployment and use. 
11. Recipient will be responsible for carrying necessary insurance for the storage and use of the 

Unit and equipment. 

82

Item XI. 8.



 

 Page 4 of 7 

 

CANINE SUPPORT AND RELIEF FUND 

AKC PET DISASTER RELIEF  

GRANT APPLICATION  
 
 

Please type or print clearly using blue or black ink.  Please complete all sections. If a section is not applicable to 

your organization, answer with N/A. 
 

Section A: GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

1.  Date of Application: ___________________  
 
 

2.  Official Name of Organization: ___________________________________________________ 
 
 

3.  Organization Mailing Address: 
______________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________ 
 
Web Site: _____________________________   
 
Email:_________________________________ Phone Number: _________________________ 
 
 

4.  Name of Executive Director / Leader: __________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address:  
______________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________ 
 
Email:_________________________________ Phone Number: _________________________ 
 
 

5.  Primary Grant Application Contact Person (if other than Executive Director):  
 

Name: _____________________________   Title: ___________________________________  
 
Mailing Address:  
______________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________ 
 
Email:_________________________________ Phone Number: _________________________ 
 
 

6.  Your organization's Federal Tax ID# (EIN): _____________________________________  
 
 

83

Item XI. 8.



 

 Page 5 of 7 

7.  Your organization’s tax-exempt status: _____________________________________ 
 
 

8.  Is your organization the subject of material litigation or an investigation that could have a 
material adverse effect on your organization or your organization’s financial status? If so, please 
explain. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.  Sponsoring AKC Club(s):  
 
_ ____________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________ 
 
 

10. Primary Club Grant Contact: 
___________________________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address:  
______________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________ 
 
Email:_________________________________ Phone Number: _________________________ 
 
 

11. Does your organization have an affiliation with an American Kennel Club employee, board 
member or member or licensed club? If so, please explain. 
 
 
 
 
 

12. Has your organization received any previous support from The American Kennel Club or AKC 
Reunite?  List the specific year(s) and please explain.  

 
 
 
 
 

13. Date of organization's inception: ___________________________________________________ 
 
 

14. Territory or area served: _________________________________________________________ 

 

84

Item XI. 8.



 

 Page 6 of 7 

 

Section B: ORGANIZATION AND PROGRAM DESCRIPTION  

 
Please provide the following information regarding your organization.  You may use an additional 
sheet of paper if necessary, but please note that concise answers are appreciated.  
 
1.  Please provide a description of your organization, including a statement of programs and recent 

activities: 
 
 
 
 

2.  What are your organization's goals, purpose and mission statement?  
 

 
 
 

3.  Please describe other pet-related disaster relief activities and efforts in your community of 
which your organization is aware. If any exist, do you intend to use the Unit in collaboration 
with those efforts, and if so, how? 
 
 
 
 

4.  Describe generally the level of training your staff/volunteers have with respect to pet 
emergency/disaster relief. Are your staff/volunteers FEMA certified for deployment in 
emergency situations? If so, at what levels? 
 

 
 
 

5.  Briefly describe the chain of command and who gives/receives deployment orders in your area.  
 
 
 
 

6.  What arrangements have you made for secure storage of the Unit and its contents? If so, 
where will the Unit be stored? 
 
 
 
 

7.  Do you have access to a vehicle that is capable of transporting the Unit (3/4 ton or better truck 
with electric brakes and 10,000 lb. hitch)? 

 
 
 

85

Item XI. 8.



 

 Page 7 of 7 

Section C: CERTIFICATION  

 
 

All of the statements I have made in this application are true and accurate. I have reviewed the AKC 
Pet Disaster Relief Unit Agreement and will sign the AKC Pet Disaster Relief Unit Agreement prior to 
our organization receiving the Unit.  
 
 
 

Signature: __________________________________ 
 
 
Name: _____________________________________ 
 
 
Title: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Organization: _____________________________ 
 
 
Date: _____________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section D: ATTACHMENTS  

 
Please include the following documentation with your application:  
 

   Completed W-9  
 

   A list of the Members of the Board of Directors or similar governing body, contact phone numbers 
and their business affiliations. 

 

   Proof of 501(c)(3) status, if applicable. 
 

86

Item XI. 8.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:    FY 2022 Budget Amendment  

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 3/15/22  

Item Description: Consideration to approve an amendment to the FY 2021-2022 
Budget. 

 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting approval of an amendment to the FY 2021-2022 Budget. 
 

Executive Summary: 

Each year the Board of Commissioners proposes a tentative budget. During the year, 

the Board receives requests from agencies and department heads to adjust the budget. 

Additionally, other factors, such as revenue, may fluctuate thereby allowing the Board to 

direct that additional expenditures be made. Therefore, a formal budget resolution 

incorporating these factors is made to adjust the budget accordingly.  

 

Background: 

Georgia Law 6-81-3. Requires the establishment of fiscal year; requirement of annual 
balanced budget; adoption of budget ordinances or resolutions generally; budget 
amendments; uniform chart of accounts. Section (b)(1) notes that each unit of local 
government shall adopt and operate under an annual balanced budget for the general 
fund, each special revenue fund, and each debt service fund in use by the local 
government. The annual balanced budget shall be adopted by ordinance or resolution 
and administered in accordance with this article. 
 
  
The budget amendment attached reflects the following changes: 

1. Reduce current year funding for the water direct discharge application 
2. Allocate funding for the Spring Hill Rd project 
3. Allocate funding for the Kolic Helmey / SR 30 project 
4. Allocate funding for the Westwood Heights drainage project 

 
 
Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the Resolution to amend the budget for FY 2021-2022.  
2. Provide Staff with Direction 

 

 

 

87

Item XI. 9.



 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve the Resolution to amend the budget 

for FY 2021-2022. 

 

Other Alternatives: N/A  

 

Department Review: Finance 

 

Funding Source: 

Multiple, in resolution 

 

Attachments: 

FY 2021-2022 Budget Amendment Resolution 

88

Item XI. 9.



Page 1 of 1 

Resolution# ____________ 

State of Georgia 

County of Effingham 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FY2021-2022 BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the FY 2021-2022 budget of Effingham County was adopted on June 15th, 2021 

and; WHEREAS, it is necessary to further amend said budget to reflect desired changes and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the County Effingham, 

Georgia that the following amendment be made: 

The amendment affects multiple departments.  It reflects revenue awarded for multiple grants, capital project 

change orders, approved software and communications contracts, the Georgia Forestry Commission stipend, 

and the purchase of additional water meters.  This amendment is an overall increase to the budget. 

 Approved this _____ day of ___________   2022. 

Attest: 

Stephanie D.  Johnson, County Clerk Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairman 

DEPT DEPT NAME ACCT NAME ACCT NO. AMOUNT DESCRIPTION

100 SPLOST WATER & SEWER WATER DIRECT DISCHARGE 321-4420-100-54-1405 -2689000.00 reduce current year funding for direct discharge app

037 SPLOST ROADS SPRING HILL RD 321-4207-037-54-2530 59000.00 allocate funding for Spring Hill Rd

037 SPLOST ROADS KOLIC HELMEY RD / SR 30 321-4207-037-54-2531 1376000.00 allocate funding for Kolic Helmey Rd / SR 30

047 SPLOST DRAINAGE WESTWOOD HEIGHTS DRAINAGE 321-4250-047-54-2512 1254000.00 allocate funding for Westwood Heights drainage

0.00 net entries

022-016

89

Item XI. 9.



Resolution # 022-017  

STATE OF GEORGIA  

COUNTY OF EFFINGHAM  

 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT INCREASED FREEPORT EXEMPTION 

PURSUANT TO O.C.G.A SECTION 48-5-48.2 

 

WHEREAS, on Tuesday, November 2, 2021 pursuant to the provisions of O.C.G.A. Section 48-

5-48.2, a referendum was held in the County of Effingham, Georgia, known as the E-Commerce 

Freeport Exemption Referendum, regarding the exemption of certain property from ad valorem 

taxation as described in the aforementioned provisions; and  

WHEREAS, the voters of Effingham County have approved in said Referendum the E-Commerce 

Freeport Exemption; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County, Georgia wish to implement the 

exemption approved by the voters as hereinbefore described; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Effingham 

County, Georgia, on lawful motion as follows: that 100% of the E-Commerce Freeport exemption 

shall be applied to the ad valorem taxation of the stock in trade of a fulfillment center, which, on 

January 1, are stored in a fulfilment center and which are made available to remote purchasers who 

may make such purchases by electronic, internet, telephonic, or other remote means, and where 

such stock in trade of a fulfillment center will be shipped from the fulfillment center and delivered 

to the purchaser at a location other than the location of the fulfillment center, as permitted by 

O.C.G.A. Section 48-5-48.2 and that the Chairman and/or Tax Assessor is further directed to 

immediately transmit a certified copy of this Resolution to the Georgia State Revenue 

Commissioner and the Effingham County Tax Commissioner. 

SO RESOLVED and EFFECTIVE, this ___ day of March, 2022.  

 

 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

 

By:         

 Wesley M Corbitt 

Its:  Chairman 

 

By:         

 Stephanie D. Johnson 

Its:  County Clerk 

 

(Seal Affixed) 

90

Item XI. 10.



Staff Report 
Subject: Fiscal Agent Designation and Acceptance Agreement for 

Family Connection 

Author:  Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk  

Department:  Administration  

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Item Description: Consideration to approve the Fiscal Agent Designation and 

Acceptance Agreement for Family Connection 

 

Summary Recommendation: 

Each year in the past, the County has been requested to act as the fiscal agent for 

Family Connections.  We act as fiscal agent and contract with the state for the grant 

which funds Family Connections. 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

1. This agreement covers the period of 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023 

2. The county will continue to serve as Fiscal Agent for Family Connections 

into FY23. 

3. The State will provide a new contract for FY23 when available for 

consideration of approval by the BOC 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the Fiscal Agent Designation and Acceptance Agreement 

2. Do not approve the Fiscal Agent Designation and Acceptance Agreement 

3. Provide Staff with Direction 

 

Recommended Alternative: Staff recommends Alternative #1  

 

Other Alternatives: N/A 

 

Department Review: Administration 

 

Funding Source: Funding is based on the amount of the State Grant.  No match is 

required. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Fiscal Agent Designation and Acceptance Agreement 

91

Item XI. 11.



FY23 - DHS - 3044_FA

Fiscal Agent Designation and Acceptance Agreement                                  COUNTY: Effingham

The Effingham County Board of Commissioners agrees to serve as the Fiscal Agent for the Effingham
County Family Connection Commission Inc. for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.

The Fiscal Agent certifies they 1) understand this is a 12 month commitment, 2) understand expenses are reimbursable on a quarterly basis, 3) agree to
receive all financial correspondence and payments relating to the funds, and make all records available for any required financial audit, 4) have
appropriate accounting and financial systems to document costs incurred and claims made and 5) agree the local Family Connection collaborative
governing body is the body responsible for all decisions associated with budgeting of these funds, but will ensure such decisions shall be in compliance
with the Fiscal Agent’s own policies and procedures.

Family Connection Collaborative
Chairperson:

_______________________________________
Signature2

Print Name: Kristen Wert

_______________________________________
Date2

Fiscal Agent:

Fiscal Agent’s fiscal year end date (month and day):
June 30

_______________________________________
Signature1

Print Name: Wesley Corbitt

Title: Chairman of the Board, Effingham County

_______________________________________
Date1

Family Connection Coordinator:

_______________________________________
Signature3

Print Name: Elaine Spencer

_______________________________________
Date3

Annex A Part 5
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F390B544-E78B-41CA-A32E-52B61414020D

92

Item XI. 11.



 

 

Staff Report 

 
Subject:        Tax Assessor Board Appointment 

Author:        Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk  

Department:      Administration  

Meeting Date:    March 15, 2022 

Item Description:   Consideration to approve a Resolution to reappoint Lisa Mock 

Hurst to the Tax Assessor Board  

 

Summary Recommendation: It is the policy of the Board of Commissioners to appoint 

qualified people to various boards and committees of the county.  Staff proposes 

consideration of the board to appoint Lisa Mock Hurst as a representative for the First 

District replacing Mr. Quent Mikeal.   

 

Executive Summary/Background: The Board of Assessor’s consists of a five (5) 

member board.  Each member serves a four (4) year term. However, Mock-Hurst 

fulfilled the unexpired term of office for Mr. Quent Mikeal in 2020. According to our 

records the term is set to expire March 15, 2022. 

 

If approved for reappointment this term of office will expire March 15, 2026 
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider:  

1. To approve a resolution to appoint Lisa Mock as a member to the Tax Assessor 
Board to fulfil the unexpired term of office.  

2. To not approve the resolution of appointment for the Tax Assessor Board at this 
time.  

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1 

 

Other Alternatives: To consider other individuals to serve on the Tax Assessor Board 
 

Department Review: County Administration and Tax Assessor’s Office 
 

Funding Source: Cost for training, travel and Board Meetings are paid from the Tax 

Assessors budget 

 

Attachments:  

1. Resolution_ Mock 

 

 

93

Item XI. 12.



Resolution# 022-018 
 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF EFFINGHAM 
 
 

RESOLUTION FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY  
BOARD OF TAX ASSESSOR’S 

 
 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A § 48-5-290 authorizes the establishment of the county 

Board of Tax Assessors in each of several counties in the state; and  

 WHEREAS, the Board of Tax Assessors of Effingham County, Georgia is a duly 

constituted body pursuant to such authority; and  

 WHEREAS, the term of office for Lisa Mock-Hurst, a duly appointed member of 

the Effingham County Board of Tax Assessors, will terminate effective March 15, 2022 

and  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section A-6 of Appendix A of the Official Code of 

Effingham County, Georgia and upon the recommendation of the Effingham County 

Commissioner for District 1 who has commended to the Board of Commissioners the 

appoint/reappoint of Lisa Mock-Hurst to the Effingham County Board of Tax Assessors 

beginning March 16, 2022 and terminating on March 15, 2026, said recommendation is 

hereby approved by the Board upon a motion made and carried. 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Effingham County Board of 

Commissioners appoints Lisa Mock-Hurst to the Effingham County Board of Tax 

Assessor’s 

 

This _____ day of _______________, 2022 

 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

____________________________________ 
Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Stephanie D. Johnson, County Clerk  

94

Item XI. 12.


	Top
	Item IX. 1.	2022 ACCG Insurance Program Contact Form Update
	Staff Report- 2022 ACCG Contact Form Update
	ACCG 2022 Contact Form

	Item IX. 2.	FY 2023 Budget Calendar
	staff report - FY 2023 Budget Calendar
	Budget Calendar FY 2023 rev2

	Item X. 1.	DeWitt Road Railroad crossing closure
	Staff report Dewitt Closure 03152022
	21-1027 Fig01a-RailCrossClosing-10-12-21 rev 2
	21-1027 CLOSING ROUTING
	Dewitt Closure notification Letter 01122022

	Item X. 2.	Effingham Hospital IGA
	Clean Third Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement Between Effingham County and Effingham County Hospital Authority)  (002)
	Clean County Resolution for 2022 IGA Amendment

	Item XI. 1.	McGraley Amendment #4
	1. Staff Report Amendment 4 mcGraley
	2.   Amendment # 4 to McGraley Roadside Mowing
	4.  Fully Executed Contract & Amendment No.1 - 3 - The McGraley Company

	Item XI. 2.	Surplus
	1. Staff Report - Resolution to Surplus
	2. Notice of Sale - Various

	Item XI. 3.	Gas South Ratification
	1. Staff Report Gas South
	2. Gas South Signed Agreement

	Item XI. 4.	RecDesk for Recreation
	1. Staff Report RecDesk
	2. Rec Desk
	3. RecDesk Proposal
	4. Civic Plus Info

	Item XI. 5.	Toast, Inc.
	1. Staff Report Toast
	2. Clarence Morgan Complex - SMB POS - New Business Quote 12_6_2021
	Single_Sign_TMA_12.7.2021_CSD3.docx

	Item XI. 6.	Location Agreement for July 3 Night of Praise
	Staff Report_Location Agreement_July 3 Night of Praise
	Night of Praise letter
	Location Agreement_Night of Praise
	July 3 Night of Praise Site Plan

	Item XI. 7.	grant app - GEMA for sheriff cameras
	2022 staff report - HSGP-SHSP Grant - Sheriff's Courthouse
	Application period for Homeland Security Grant Program opens Feb. 14 _ Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency

	Item XI. 8.	ACK Reunite Grant Application
	2022 staff report - AKC Reunite - Animal Shelter
	AKC REUNITE Grant guide & app

	Item XI. 9.	Budget amendment for 3/15/22
	Staff Report FY 2022 Budget Amendment - 3-15-22
	Resolution FY 2022 budget amendments - 3-15-22 meeting

	Item XI. 10.	Freeport Exemption Resolution
	freeport - resolution

	Item XI. 11.	Family Connection Fiscal Agent Agreement
	family connection_sr
	FY23_-_DHS_-_3044_FA(28154847)_202203011110

	Item XI. 12.	Tax Assessor Board Reappointment / Mock - Hurst
	tax assessor board sr
	RESOLUTION OF APPOINTMENT

	Bottom

